
 
AGENDA 
 
 
MONROE 
NORTH  
TIFA 
 
Board Members: 
 
Jim Baldwin • Shaun Biel • Mayor Rosalynn Bliss • Elianna Bootzin • Diedre Deering • Kayem Dunn • Jane Gietzen • Carl Kelly • 
Mark Roys • Jim Talen • Rick Winn 
 

 
      

 
 
Wednesday, March 11, 2020 
10:00a.m. Meeting  
29 Pearl Street, NW Suite #1

 

 
 

1. Call to order 
 

2. Approve Meeting Minutes from September 11, 2019 (10:00)  Motion  Biel 
(enclosure) 
 

3. Accept Financials from December 31, 2019 (10:05)    Motion   Wallace 
(enclosure) 
 

4. Presentation of the FY2019 Audit (10:10)     Motion  Wallace 
(enclosure) 
 

5. Womens Way Alley Improvement and Activation (10:20)   Motion  Van Driel 
(enclosure) 
 

6. Canal Street Park Improvements (10:30)     Motion  Miller 
(enclosure) 
 

7. President & CEO Report (10:40)      Info Item Kelly 
 

8. Public Comment (10:45) 
 

9. Board Member Discussion (10:50) 
 

10. Adjournment  



           UNAPPROVED MINUTES 
 

 
 

Meeting of the City of Grand Rapids Tax Increment Financing Authority 
September 11, 2019 

 
 
1. Call to Order –The meeting was called to order at 9:15 a.m. by Chair Shaun Biel 
 
2. Attendance            
 

Present: Jim Talen, Kayem Dunn, Shaun Biel, Mayor Rosalynn Bliss, Diedre Deering, Jim Baldwin, 
Mark Roys, and Eliana Bootzin. 
 
Absent: Carl Kelly and Jane Gietzen 
 
Others Present: Tim Kelly (Executive Director), Flor Valera (MNTIFA Recording Secretary), Jana 
Wallace (MNTIFA Treasurer), Dick Went (Legal Counsel), Melvin Eledge, Marion Bonneaux, and 
others. 

 
2. Approve Meeting Minutes from August 14, 2019 

Motion: Diedre Deering, supported by Mayor Rosalynn Bliss moved approval of the minutes from August 
14, 2019 meeting as presented. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

4. River Governance Consultant Funding Authorization 
Andy Guy introduced the request to authorize funding to support the River Governance consultant 
services. Mr. Guy reminded the Board that during the August 2019 meeting, the MNTIFA Board 
accepted the consultant recommendation and authorized DGRI staff to negotiate a project budget 
with HR&A Advisors and Kathy Blaha Consulting. DGRI staff met with the consultant team to discuss 
the project budget, scope of work and timeline. The consultant will focus on three key areas (1) analyze 
funding streams opportunities to program, operate and maintain the new riverfront, (2) review 
different governance model options and recommend a strategy and (3) develop a benefits case to help 
drive the implementation process. Mr. Guy added that a draft recommendation is expected to be 
deliver by the first quarter of 2020. The total request to support this work is in the amount of $197,500; 
the DDA just approved their shared of the project cost. Funding for this project is allocated in the 
FY20 MNTIFA budget. 

 



Monroe North TIFA 
Minutes –September 11, 2019 
Page 2 
 

 
Motion: Kayem Dunn, supported by Mayor Rosalynn Bliss moved to approve consultant services in an 
amount not to exceed $50,000 to support Grand River governance and funding organizing. Motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
5. FY20 Project Discussion 
 To follow-up on last month's board meeting discussion regarding the MNTIFA expenditures, Mr. 

Kelly presented a seven-year summary report outlining the TIFA's annual tax increment revenues 
versus expenditures. The Board thanked Ms. Wallace for putting this information together. Along with 
this report, Mr. Kelly took a moment to go over the TIFA budget and highlighted projects slated for 
FY20.  He stated that most of the TIFA's budget priorities are related to transportation infrastructure; 
this includes the DASH service as well as funding to support the installation of transit shelters. Funds 
have also been allocated to support the streetscape improvements such as the Mason and Ottawa 
Street reconstruction. Mr. Kelly said we are currently waiting to get a confirmation from the Grand 
Rapids Engineering Department to understand how our funds will be utilized. Since work for this 
project has already begun, we need to get clarification on whether we will still be supporting green 
infrastructure; otherwise, we can evaluate how we can deploy these resources elsewhere. 
Furthermore, the TIFA's FY20 priorities also focus on supporting improvements to public spaces and 
parks. Mr. Kelly said to support these initiatives; we budgeted $200,000. Mr. Kelly said Melvin Eledge 
has assisted us with creating an inventory of all the current infrastructure located at Canal Street Park. 
A one-page summary report was presented to the Board. Mr. Kelly said this report also outlines areas 
of improvement and include updating signage, enhancing pedestrian crosswalk, adding murals, and 
investing in new amenities along the river trail to enhance the pedestrian experience. Mr. Kelly said the 
current playground also needs some upgrades. The Grand Rapids Parks Department has indicated 
that they have allocated funds to conduct some improvements and DGRI is currently waiting to get 
more clarification on the schedule so we can collaborate on this project. Mr. Kelly added that bike 
loops and bike fixing stations are other public amenities elements the Board could evaluate to support 
using the $200,00 that was budgeted. Mr. Kelly asked for questions or suggestions on the prioritization 
of these projects. 
Regarding the use of the Canal Street Park, Ms. Dunn asked how often and by whom is the park most 
used. Mr. Kelly said we currently do not have data available to evaluate how many visitors use this park, 
we could evaluate installing pedestrian counters, but the addition of new restaurants to the area has 
recently attracted more people to the park. Mayor Bliss asked if the funds could be utilized to support 
business event sponsorships. Mr. Kelly said TIFA funds must only be used to support infrastructure 
improvements. Mr. Kelly concluded by stating that he would keep the Board updated as we move 
forward with these projects. 

 
6.  President & CEO Report 
 DDA (8/14/19) 

• Authorized negotiation with consultant for River Governance  
• Approved funding for transit bulb on Fulton Street 
• Approved contribution for the reconstruction of Division Avenue from Cherry-Wealthy 
• Approved funding for Prismatica art installation for World of Winter 
• Authorized negotiation with Olsen Loeks for a LOU for the disposition/development of 158 Oakes 

 
DID (4/24/19) 

• Recommended FY20 Budget to City Commission  



Monroe North TIFA 
Minutes –September 11, 2019 
Page 3 
 

• Discussed Downtown Retail  
• Received a presentation on the temporary Downtown Dog Park 
• Discussed the renewal process to be completed prior to FY21 

 
MNTIFA (8/14/19) 

• Accepted FY19 Financial Statements 
• Adopted FY20 Budget  
• Authorized negotiation with consultant for River Governance  
 

DGRI (7/16/19) 
• Approved and recommended updated DGRI and City Service Agreement to City Commission 
• Received updates to 2019 Work Plan 

 
Goal 1 – Reestablish the Grand River as the draw to the City and Region 

• Riverfront Governance Organizing 
o RFQ responses reviewed with Goal 1  
o Initial Steering Committee meeting held July 31 
o Finalizing dates for GR Forward Thinking Series 

 River LA: 9/4-5 
 Gil Penalosa – 9/23-24 

o Final recommendations delivered Q1 2020 
 

• Lyon Square Opportunity Site 
o Finalizing Phase 1 design  
o Design underway for Phase 2 (Plaza) 
o MOU drafted and in process of being finalized 
o Phase 1 and 2 will be bid as one project in October 2019 

 
Goal 2 - Develop a true Downtown neighborhood home to a diverse population 

• Downtown Neighbor Network 
o Marketing materials in development to distribute to Downtown property managers 
o Facebook Group created to provide communication platform for residents 
o Network Board/Committee seated in early 2019 and met April 5 

 
• Downtown Affordable Housing  

o RFP released May 2019 
o Responses to be reviewed with Goal 2 Alliance  
o Recommendation(s) will be brought to DDA Board 

 
• Development News 

o 158 Oakes  
 DDA approved negotiating LOU with Olsen Loeks for new office development 
 LOU executed week of September 9, 2019 for 12 months 
 Development Agreement outlining terms of development to be brought for DDA 

consideration 
 



Monroe North TIFA 
Minutes –September 11, 2019 
Page 4 
 

o Studio Park  
 Ottawa extension summer 2019 
 Parking ramp September 2019 
 Theater and residential buildings summer/fall 2019 
 Hotel January 2020 

o 150 Ottawa 
 Interior build out underway 
 Warner Building will be complete summer 2019 
 Hyatt Place grand opening September 6, 2019 

o 37 Ottawa and 50 Monroe 
 AC Hotel Grand Opening June 3 
 37 Ottawa office space being leased 
 Both buildings to be complete and open spring 2019 

o 449 Bridge Street  
 Utility connection complete last week and will begin “going vertical” by December 
 Target completion September 2019 

o 10 Ionia 
 Brownfield approvals received in 2018 
 Groundbreaking in January 2019 
 18-month construction schedule 

o MSU GR Research Center Phase II 
 Long-term ground lease executed for Public Private Partnership  
 Development will include a 200,000 sq. ft. medical innovation building office and a 600-car 

parking structure 
 Construction anticipated to begin fall 2019 with substantial completion in late 2021 

 
Goal 3 – Implement a 21st century mobility strategy 

• Bus Shelter Enhancements 
o Held Meeting with Mobile GR and Rapid staff to outline project funding and schedule 
o Installation to begin fall 2019 
o Final install complete before end of FY 2020 

 
• Pedestrian Safety Enhancements 

o Improvements complete on Division Avenue north of Lyon 
o Keeler Building areaway reinforcement complete 
o Michigan Street crossing designs are finalized and the project will be bid summer and installed 

October 
 

Goal 4 – Grow more & better jobs & ensure continued vitality of the local economy 
• Recruit a major office tenant to Downtown 

o Working with City, Chamber and Right Place to develop a more concerted and intentional 
recruitment strategy to attract and retain businesses Downtown 

o Hosting Chris Leinberger 10/24-25 
 

• Held 1st Annual Small Business Expo August 29th at Devos Place 
• Partnering with City and Chamber to finalize the scope of for a retail retention and attraction program 

 



Monroe North TIFA 
Minutes –September 11, 2019 
Page 5 
 

Goal 5 – Reinvest in public space, culture & inclusive programming 
• VandenBerg Plaza/Calder Plaza Improvements 

o Design of Phase 1 improvements ongoing 
o Designs complete spring 2019 
o June 2019 is the 50th anniversary of the plaza's opening and a key organizing point for a celebratory 

moment 
 

• Public Realm Improvements 
o Streetspace Design Guidelines receiving Michigan APA urban design award in Sept 
o Tree plantings with FOGRP scheduled for fall 2019 and spring 2020 
o Downtown Dog Park open  
o Fitness equipment installation underway in North Monroe. Complete in May. 

 
• Explore opportunities to beautify public plaza at Van Andel Arena 

o Consultant team work commenced in November 
o Exploring partnership/funding opportunities for FY2019 
o Alley activation to begin with former Art Prize installation (Ford Museum crocodiles) 
o Stakeholder and Alliance engagement ongoing 
o Designs complete summer 2019 

 
• Division Avenue Safety and Cleanliness Improvements 

o Lighting 
 DDA authorized additional funding in December 2018 
 Fulton to Cherry construction to begin spring 2019 

o Public Restrooms 
 City and DGRI working with committee to finalize recommendation of new public facilities for 

spring 2020 deployment 
 City and DGRI partnering to develop a sustainable facility management protocol for the new 

facilities.  
 

• Public Art 
o Work on 27 Rad Women murals complete May 2019 
o “Rainbow Road” complete at Sheldon 
o Collaborating with UICA Exit Space on Richmond Stamp building 
o Future opportunities include Ottawa and Michigan off ramp and riverfront mural down the stairwell 

near the Grand Rapids Public Museum  
 

7. Public Comment 
 None 

 
8.  Board Member Discussion  
 Ms. Deering congratulated DGRI Staff on a successful State of Our Downtown event. 
 Mayor Bliss invited the board to attend the upcoming Mayor’s Grand River Cleanup event scheduled 

for September 14, 2019 at the 6th Street Park.  
 
9. Adjournment 

The meeting adjourned at 9:33 a.m. 



 

          
 
 
 
DATE:  January 15, 2020 
 
TO:  Monroe North Tax Increment Financing Authority 
 
FROM: Jana M. Wallace 
  Treasurer 
 
SUBJECT: FY2020 Interim Financial Statements Through October 31, 2019 
 
Attached are the Monroe North Tax Increment Financing Authority interim financial 
statements for first half of the Authority’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2020.   
 
   Statement A:  Balance Sheet 
   Statement B:  FY2020 Statement of Revenues and Expenditures 
   Statement C:  Schedule of July 1 through December 31, 2019 Expenditures 
 
The City Treasurer has distributed both summer and winter tax increment revenues.   
 
The Authority has sufficient cash to support budgeted expenditures.   
 
Please contact me at 456-4514 or at jwallace@grcity.us if you have any questions. 
 
Attachments 
 
 

Agenda Item # 3 
____ __, 2020 
Monroe North TIFA Meeting 



ASSETS
  Pooled Cash and Investments 2,131,802$     
  Future Tax Increment Revenues Anticipated 37,200            
  General Fixed Assets 5,307,124       
  Less:  Accumulated Depreciation (3,757,681)      

TOTAL ASSETS 3,718,445$     

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Liabilities
  Accounts Payable -$               
  Contracts Payable 37,200            

TOTAL LIABILITIES 37,200$          

Fund Balance / Equity:
  Investments in General Fixed Assets 1,549,443$     

  Reserve for Compensated Absences 910                 
  Reserve for Encumbrances 47                  

  Reserve for Authorized Projects 2,130,845       
TOTAL FUND EQUITY 3,681,245$     

TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND EQUITY 3,718,445$     

mnstmts-dec19.xls 01152020

MONROE NORTH

STATEMENT A

TAX INCREMENT FINANCING AUTHORITY
Balance Sheet

as of December 31, 2019



REVENUES Budget Actual
Property Tax Increment 422,100$     396,821$       

Property Tax Increment - Prior Year Appeals (7,500)         -                

State of Michigan - Personal Property Losses 120,000       -                1

Investments Earnings 36,694         22,459          

Investments Earnings - FY2019 Accrual Reversal -              (15,494)         2

From / (To) Fund Balance 486,680       -                
TOTAL REVENUES 1,057,974$  403,786$       

EXPENSES
Committed and Ongoing

Contractual Services - Annual Audit 5,060$         5,060$          
Contractual Services - Legal 5,000          528               

Floodwalls Debt Service - Interest 2,330          1,586            
Floodwalls Debt Service - Principal 35,400         35,400          

General Fund Departments Services 27,567         13,784          
Insurance - General Liability 917             456               

Share of DGRI Administration 6,500          1,246            
Staff Support / Personnel 70,000         2,999            

Supplies 200             -                
Sub-Total Committed and Ongoing 152,974$     61,059          

GR Forward Projects:
Goal #1:  Restore the River as the Draw and Create a Connected
  and Equitable River Corridor

Asset and Riverwalk Maintenance 10,000$       -$              
Downtown Planning - GR Forward 50,000         -                

Riverwalk Retrofits 50,000         -                
Sub-Total GR Forward - Goal #1 110,000$     -$              

Goal #2:  Create a True Downtown Neighborhood Which is
  Home to a Diverse Population

Downtown Census 5,000$         -                
District Enhancement Grants 50,000         -                

Infrastructure Improvements - Miscellaneous 10,000         9,500            
Sub-Total GR Forward - Goal #2 65,000$       9,500$          

Goal #3:  Implement a 21st Century Mobility Strategy
Accessibility and Streetscape Improvement 50,000$       -$              

Bicycle Instrastructure Improvements 50,000         -                
Mason Street / Ottawa Avenue Reconstruction 250,000       -                

Newberry Street Reconstruction 50,000         -                
Transit Improvements in Monroe North District 130,000       51,394          

Sub-Total GR Forward - Goal #3 530,000$     51,394$         

Goal #5:  Reinvest in Public Space, Culture, and Inclusive Programming
Urban Recreation Plan 200,000$     14,619          

Sub-Total GR Forward - Goal #5 200,000$     14,619$         

TOTAL EXPENSES 1,057,974$  136,572$       

EXCESS / (DEFICIT) -$            267,214$       

Note 1: State of Michigan reimbursement for the tax increment revenue losses related to
  State-mandated industrial and commercial personal property exemptions.  For FY2017,
  $108,171 was reimbursed.  For FY2018, $122,248 and for FY2019 $129,325.
Note 2:  GASB 31 requires 'mark to market,' entries to reflect current values of investments
  outstanding at year-end.  The mark to market entry as of June 30, 2019 was positive, so
  the FY2019 Accrual Reversal in FY2020 is a negative number. mnstmts-dec19.xls 01152020

STATEMENT B

FY2020

MONROE NORTH
TAX INCREMENT FINANCING AUTHORITY

FY2020 Statement of Revenues and Expenses
July 1, 2019 - December 31, 2019



Date
Posted Vendor Purpose / Project Description Amount

10/25/2019 County of Kent Drain Commission Series 2008 Floodwalls Bonds Floodwalls debt service - annual principal paid 35,400.00$    
8/21/2019 City Treasurer - MobileGR/Parking Transit Improvements Reimburse Mobile GR for Bus Shelter 11,392.00     

12/30/2019 Rick Overway Infrastructure Improvs - Misc Banner Hardware 11/2019 -- Misc Infrastructure 9,500.00       
8/8/2019 Fishbeck Thompson Carr & Huber Urban Recreation Plan 16065-Newberry-Monroe to Dvn (#384358) TIFA 7,707.86       

8/21/2019 City Treasurer - MobileGR/Parking Transit Improvements AUG 2019 TIFA SHARE OF DASH NORTH SVC 6,667.00       
8/21/2019 City Treasurer - MobileGR/Parking Transit Improvements JULY 2019 TIFA SHARE OF DASH NORTH SVC 6,667.00       

10/10/2019 City Treasurer - MobileGR/Parking Transit Improvements SEPT 2019 TIFA SHARE OF DASH NORTH SVC 6,667.00       
10/18/2019 City Treasurer - MobileGR/Parking Transit Improvements OCT 2019 TIFA SHARE OF DASH NORTH SVC 6,667.00       
11/18/2019 City Treasurer - MobileGR/Parking Transit Improvements NOV 2019 TIFA SHARE OF DASH NORTH SVC 6,667.00       
12/18/2019 City Treasurer - MobileGR/Parking Transit Improvements DEC 2019 TIFA SHARE OF DASH NORTH SVC 6,667.00       
8/22/2019 Kamminga & Roodvoets Inc Urban Recreation Plan 16065 Newberry-Monroe to Dvn (#1606517) TIFA 5,355.33       

12/30/2019 Plante & Moran, PLLC Annual Audit Financial audit for FYE 06/30/2019 5,060.00       
12/8/2019 Kamminga & Roodvoets Inc Urban Recreation Plan 16065-Newberry-Monroe to Dvn (#1606519) TIFA 4,321.96       

10/13/2019 Kamminga & Roodvoets Inc Urban Recreation Plan 16065-Newberry-Monroe to Dvn (#1606518) TIFA 2,552.43       
7/22/2019 Wyoming Excavators Inc Urban Recreation Plan 17061-park hard surface improvs (#1706103) TIFA 2,382.62       
7/23/2019 City Treasurer - Budget Office General Fund Depts Services IET - Operating Transfer A-87 2,297.25       
8/12/2019 City Treasurer - Budget Office General Fund Depts Services IET - Operating Transfer A-87 2,297.25       

9/6/2019 City Treasurer - Budget Office General Fund Depts Services IET - Operating Transfer A-87 2,297.25       
10/2/2019 City Treasurer - Budget Office General Fund Depts Services IET - Operating Transfer A-87 2,297.25       
11/1/2019 City Treasurer - Budget Office General Fund Depts Services IET - Operating Transfer A-87 2,297.25       
12/2/2019 City Treasurer - Budget Office General Fund Depts Services IET - Operating Transfer A-87 2,297.25       

10/25/2019 County of Kent Drain Commission Series 2008 Floodwalls Bonds Floodwalls debt service - semi-annual interest 1,496.25       
10/19/2019 City of Grand Rapids Staff Support / Personnel Payroll period ended 10/19/2019 409.76          
8/12/2019 Priority Health Staff Support / Personnel Health Insurance Aug-Sept-Oct 2019 367.41          
9/7/2019 City of Grand Rapids Staff Support / Personnel Payroll period ended 09/07/2019 302.49          

12/11/2019 Dickinson Wright PLLC Contractual Services - Legal MNTIFA Legal matters 08/2019 286.00          
10/5/2019 City of Grand Rapids Staff Support / Personnel Payroll period ended 10/05/2019 260.74          

12/28/2019 City of Grand Rapids Staff Support / Personnel Payroll period ended 12/28/2019 256.56          
10/1/2019 Priority Health Staff Support / Personnel Health Insurance Oct-Nov-Dec 2019 249.35          

12/11/2019 Dickinson Wright PLLC Contractual Services - Legal MNTIFA Legal matters 09/2019 242.00          
8/10/2019 City of Grand Rapids Staff Support / Personnel Payroll period ended 08/10/2019 235.79          
9/21/2019 City of Grand Rapids Staff Support / Personnel Payroll period ended 09/21/2019 223.48          
8/24/2019 City of Grand Rapids Staff Support / Personnel Payroll period ended 08/24/2019 222.48          

11/30/2019 City of Grand Rapids Staff Support / Personnel Payroll period ended 11/30/2019 167.63          
12/10/2019 Federal Square Bldg Co. #1, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Lease: 29 Pearl Street 12/2019 93.29            
8/20/2019 HR Collaborative LLC Share of DGRI Administration HR Consultant services Talent Search 07/2019 93.00            

12/15/2019 County of Kent Drain Commission Series 2008 Floodwalls Bonds Share of annual paying agent fee 90.00            
7/22/2019 Federal Square Bldg Co. #1, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Lease: 29 Pearl Street 07/2019 89.70            
8/15/2019 Federal Square Bldg Co. #1, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Lease: 29 Pearl Street 08/2019 89.70            
9/12/2019 Federal Square Bldg Co. #1, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Lease: 29 Pearl Street 09/2019 89.70            

11/20/2019 Federal Square Bldg Co. #1, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Lease: 29 Pearl Street 10/2019 89.70            
11/20/2019 Federal Square Bldg Co. #1, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Lease: 29 Pearl Street 11/2019 89.70            
7/18/2019 City Treasurer - Risk Mnmt Insurance - General Liability Monthly General Insurance Allocation 76.00            
8/12/2019 City Treasurer - Risk Mnmt Insurance - General Liability Monthly General Insurance Allocation 76.00            
9/6/2019 City Treasurer - Risk Mnmt Insurance - General Liability Monthly General Insurance Allocation 76.00            

10/2/2019 City Treasurer - Risk Mnmt Insurance - General Liability Monthly General Insurance Allocation 76.00            
11/1/2019 City Treasurer - Risk Mnmt Insurance - General Liability Monthly General Insurance Allocation 76.00            
12/2/2019 City Treasurer - Risk Mnmt Insurance - General Liability Monthly General Insurance Allocation 76.00            
11/2/2019 City of Grand Rapids Staff Support / Personnel Payroll period ended 11/02/2019 55.87            
9/24/2019 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration Laptop replacements w/docking stations 7/2019 38.05            

11/16/2019 City of Grand Rapids Staff Support / Personnel Payroll period ended 11/16/2019 37.20            
7/13/2019 City of Grand Rapids Staff Support / Personnel Payroll period ended 07/13/2019 36.27            
7/22/2019 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration Laptop replacements 7/2019 32.33            
9/12/2019 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration Down pmt - 1st phase server migration 07/19 31.00            

11/21/2019 Blue Cross Blue Shield of Mich Staff Support / Personnel Dental Insurance Premium 12/2019-2/2020 28.70            
10/1/2019 Blue Cross Blue Shield of Mich Staff Support / Personnel Dental Insurance Premium 10/2019-12/2019 26.53            

10/20/2019 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration Server migration implementation services 9/2019 25.58            
9/22/2019 Hub International Midwest Ltd Share of DGRI Administration Directors and Officers Policy 11/2019-11/2020 21.17            

12/29/2019 TGG, Inc. Staff Support / Personnel Life & S/T & L/T disability ins - 01/01/20-01/31/20 17.67            
9/22/2019 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration Laptop for Comms Team 09/2019 17.52            
9/22/2019 TGG, Inc. Staff Support / Personnel Life & S/T & L/T disability ins - 10/01/19-10/31/19 15.88            
10/9/2019 HR Collaborative LLC Share of DGRI Administration HR Consultant services 09/2019 15.13            

10/22/2019 TGG, Inc. Staff Support / Personnel Life & S/T & L/T disability ins - 11/01/19-11/30/19 14.76            
11/21/2019 TGG, Inc. Staff Support / Personnel Life & S/T & L/T disability ins - 12/01/19-12/30/19 14.76            
7/22/2019 TGG, Inc. Staff Support / Personnel Life & S/T & L/T disability ins - 08/01/19-08/31/19 14.53            

continued on the next page

STATEMENT C

MONROE NORTH TAX INCREMENT FINANCING AUTHORITY
Schedule of Expenditures

July 1 Through December 31, 2019



STATEMENT C - continued
Monroe North Tax Increment Financing Authority
Schedule of Expenditures
July 1 Through December 31, 2019 Page 2

Date Activity #
Posted Vendor Purpose / Project Description Amount

continued from prior page
8/22/2019 TGG, Inc. Staff Support / Personnel Life & S/T & L/T disability ins - 09/01/19-09/31/19 14.53$          
9/22/2019 HR Collaborative LLC Share of DGRI Administration HR Consultant services 08/2019 14.49            
9/29/2019 Dickinson Wright PLLC Share of DGRI Administration Legal:  Inter-organizational svc agreement 07/19 13.91            

9/5/2019 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration IT Services 09/2019 13.80            
10/1/2019 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration IT services 10/2019 13.79            
10/6/2019 The Hartford Staff Support / Personnel Workers Compensation renewal 10/2019 13.55            
7/22/2019 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration IT services 07/2019 12.86            
7/22/2019 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration IT services 08/2019 12.86            

11/26/2019 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration IT Services 12/2019 12.86            
8/15/2019 Dickinson Wright PLLC Share of DGRI Administration Legal: Inter-organizational matters  6/2019 12.55            

10/29/2019 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration IT Services 10/2019 11.94            
11/20/2019 HR Collaborative LLC Share of DGRI Administration HR Consultant services 10/2019 11.41            
10/20/2019 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration IT System Engineer 08/2019 10.04            
10/1/2019 HR Collaborative LLC Share of DGRI Administration HR Consultant services 07/2019 9.86              

12/19/2019 GR Area Chamber of Commerce Share of DGRI Administration Membership dues 2020 - TIFA share 9.30              
10/1/2019 GreatAmerica Financial Svcs Corp Share of DGRI Administration Copier Lease 09/2019 8.44              
11/7/2019 Fifth Third Bank P-Card 10/19 Share of DGRI Administration Office Supplies 10/2019 8.37              
9/29/2019 Dickinson Wright PLLC Share of DGRI Administration Board of Advisors 07/2019 7.91              
7/22/2019 Federal Square Bldg Co. #1, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Lease: 29 Pearl Street Mezz Office 07/2019 7.44              
8/15/2019 Federal Square Bldg Co. #1, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Lease: 29 Pearl Street Mezz Office 08/2019 7.44              
9/12/2019 Federal Square Bldg Co. #1, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Lease: 29 Pearl Street Mezz Office 09/2019 7.44              

11/20/2019 Federal Square Bldg Co. #1, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Lease: 29 Pearl Street Mezz Office 10/2019 7.44              
11/20/2019 Federal Square Bldg Co. #1, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Lease: 29 Pearl Street Mezz Office 11/2019 7.44              
12/10/2019 Federal Square Bldg Co. #1, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Lease: 29 Pearl Street Mezz Office 12/2019 7.44              
9/16/2019 Kelly Brewster Urban Recreation Plan 16065 Newberry-Monroe to Dvn (# 875) TIFA 7.14              
8/14/2019 Professional Maint of Michigan Inc. Share of DGRI Administration Janitorial services July 2019 7.07              

9/5/2019 Professional Maint of Michigan Inc. Share of DGRI Administration Janitorial services August 2019 7.07              
10/9/2019 Professional Maint of Michigan Inc. Share of DGRI Administration Janitorial services September 2019 7.07              

11/20/2019 Professional Maint of Michigan Inc. Share of DGRI Administration Janitorial services October 2019 7.07              
12/5/2019 Professional Maint of Michigan Inc. Share of DGRI Administration Janitorial services November 2019 7.07              

12/10/2019 HR Collaborative LLC Share of DGRI Administration HR Consultant services 11/2019 6.70              
12/11/2019 Dickinson Wright PLLC Share of DGRI Administration DGRI agreement with Block by Block 09/2019 6.28              

9/5/2019 GreatAmerica Financial Svcs Corp Share of DGRI Administration Copier Lease 08/2019 6.22              
8/12/2019 GreatAmerica Financial Svcs Corp Share of DGRI Administration Copier Lease 07/2019 6.10              

10/20/2019 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration IT System Engineer 08/2019 5.86              
10/29/2019 GreatAmerica Financial Svcs Corp Share of DGRI Administration Copier Lease 10/2019 5.75              
12/3/2019 GreatAmerica Financial Svcs Corp Share of DGRI Administration Copier Lease 11/2019 5.65              

10/20/2019 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration Laptop Docking Stations 5.50              
12/29/2019 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration Server Migration Implementation Services 11/2019 5.04              
10/1/2019 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration IT services 09/2019 4.65              

11/20/2019 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration IT Office 365 Software Agreement 10/2019 4.20              
10/9/2019 Curtis Laundry & Dry Cleaners, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration Table Cloth Cleaning services 09/10/2019 4.17              

12/10/2019 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration IT Office 365 Software Agreement 11/2019 4.06              
12/19/2019 TDS Metrocom, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Phone Service 12/2019 3.91              
10/20/2019 TDS Metrocom, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Phone Service 10/2019 3.90              
11/21/2019 TDS Metrocom, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Phone Service 11/2019 3.90              
7/22/2019 TDS Metrocom, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Phone Service 07/2019 3.89              
8/15/2019 TDS Metrocom, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Phone Service 08/2019 3.89              

11/20/2019 Federal Square Bldg Co. #1, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Utility Service: Electric Oct 2019 3.86              
9/22/2019 TDS Metrocom, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Phone Service 09/2019 3.84              
10/9/2019 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration IT Office 365 Software Agreement 09/2019 3.82              
9/22/2019 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration IT System Engineer 08/2019 3.77              

12/29/2019 Federal Square Bldg Co. #1, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Utility Service: Electric Nov 2019 3.59              
8/20/2019 Federal Square Bldg Co. #1, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Utility Service: Electricity June, 2019 3.38              

7/22/2019 Federal Square Bldg Co. #1, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Utility Service: Electricity June, 2019 3.34              
10/22/2019 Federal Square Bldg Co. #1, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Utility Service: Electric Sept 2019 3.23              
10/1/2019 Federal Square Bldg Co. #1, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Utility Service: Electricity Aug 2019 3.16              
9/22/2019 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration Software install for streaming laptop 08/2019 3.10              
8/15/2019 Cellco Partnership dba Verizon Share of DGRI Administration Cell Phone Service 07/2019 2.90              
7/22/2019 MVP Sportsplex - GR, LLC Staff Support / Personnel Paid via Payroll Deductions 07/2019 2.88              
8/15/2019 MVP Sportsplex - GR, LLC Staff Support / Personnel Paid via Payroll Deductions 08/2019 2.88              
12/3/2019 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration IT Services 11/2019 2.79              

11/20/2019 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration IT Agreement Managed Network 10/2019 2.78              
10/1/2019 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration IT services 9/2019 2.76              

10/10/2019 Fifth Third Bank P-Card 09/19 Share of DGRI Administration Office Supplies 09/2019 2.66              

continued on the next page



STATEMENT C - continued
Monroe North Tax Increment Financing Authority
Schedule of Expenditures
July 1 Through December 31, 2019 Page 3

Date Activity #
Posted Vendor Purpose / Project Description Amount

continued from prior page
9/12/2019 Staples Contract & Commercial Inc. Share of DGRI Administration Office supplies 08/16/2019 2.66$            
9/5/2019 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration IT Services 08/2019 2.62              

12/29/2019 Cellco Partnership dba Verizon Share of DGRI Administration Cell Phone Service 11/2019 2.57              
8/14/2019 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration IT services: 07/2019 2.55              

11/20/2019 Staples Contract & Commercial Inc. Share of DGRI Administration Office supplies 10/28/2019 2.53              
9/12/2019 MVP Sportsplex - GR, LLC Staff Support / Personnel Paid via Payroll Deductions 09/2019 2.52              
10/9/2019 MVP Sportsplex - GR, LLC Staff Support / Personnel Paid via Payroll Deductions 10/2019 2.52              

11/20/2019 MVP Sportsplex - GR, LLC Staff Support / Personnel Paid via Payroll Deductions 11/2019 2.52              
12/10/2019 Comcast Cable Communications, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration Internet at 29 Pearl St NW 11/07-01/05/20 2.28              
10/22/2019 Professional Maint of Michigan Inc. Share of DGRI Administration Window cleaning services 09/2019 2.17              
11/21/2019 Selective Inc Co of America Share of DGRI Administration Liability Insurance Endorsement for DDA 11/2019 2.10              
12/19/2019 Selective Inc Co of America Share of DGRI Administration Liability Insurance Endorsement for DDA 2019 2.10              
10/1/2019 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration IT services 09/2019 2.09              

10/20/2019 Cellco Partnership dba Verizon Share of DGRI Administration Cell Phone Service 09/2019 2.07              
11/21/2019 Cellco Partnership dba Verizon Share of DGRI Administration Cell Phone Service 10/2019 2.07              
7/22/2019 Selective Inc Co of America Share of DGRI Administration Liability Insurance Endorsement for DDA 2019 2.02              
8/14/2019 Comcast Share of DGRI Administration Internet at 29 Pearl St NW 08/07-09/06/19 2.01              

10/20/2019 Staples Contract & Commercial Inc. Share of DGRI Administration Office supplies 09/2019 1.94              
7/28/2019 Comcast Share of DGRI Administration Internet at 29 Pearl St NW 07/07-08/06/19 1.88              
10/6/2019 Cellco Partnership dba Verizon Share of DGRI Administration Cell Phone Service 08/2019 1.71              

11/21/2019 Pure Water Partners LLC Share of DGRI Administration Water cooler lease Nov. 2019- Jan. 2020 1.56              
9/11/2019 Fifth Third Bank P-Card 08/19 Share of DGRI Administration Background Check: Summer Interns 1.49              

11/20/2019 Fusion IT LLC Share of DGRI Administration Down pmt for Adobe Acrobat License 10/2019 1.49              
10/20/2019 Littlefoot Coffee Roasters Share of DGRI Administration Meeting Supplies 10/2019 1.44              
11/20/2019 Creative Studio Promotions Share of DGRI Administration Office supplies: DGRI Jackets 8/2019 1.42              
8/14/2019 Madcap Coffee Company Share of DGRI Administration Meeting Supplies 08/2019 1.42              
9/22/2019 Madcap Coffee Company Share of DGRI Administration Meeting Supplies 09/2019 1.42              

11/21/2019 Madcap Coffee Company Share of DGRI Administration Meeting Supplies 11/2019 1.42              
12/19/2019 Littlefoot Coffee Roasters Share of DGRI Administration Meeting Supplies 12/2019 1.41              
8/29/2019 Amanda Sloan Share of DGRI Administration Office Supplies Reimb. 08/2019 1.36              
9/5/2019 Metro FiberNet, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Internet at 29 Pearl St NW 08/2019 1.33              

8/28/2019 Gordon Water Systems Share of DGRI Administration Water Cooler Lease 08/2019 1.25              
10/1/2019 Metro FiberNet, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Internet at 29 Pearl St NW 09/2019 1.24              

10/29/2019 Metro FiberNet, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Internet at 29 Pearl St NW 10/2019 1.24              
12/3/2019 Metro FiberNet, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Internet at 29 Pearl St NW 11/2019 1.24              
7/22/2019 Engineered Protection Systems Inc Share of DGRI Administration Office Security System 8/1/2019 - 10/31/2019 1.15              

10/20/2019 Engineered Protection Systems Inc Share of DGRI Administration Office Security System 11/1/2019 - 1/31/2020 1.15              
10/20/2019 Staples Contract & Commercial Inc. Share of DGRI Administration Office supplies 09/2019 1.15              
10/9/2019 Comcast Share of DGRI Administration Internet at 29 Pearl St NW 10/07-11/06/19 1.08              

12/10/2019 Staples Contract & Commercial Inc. Share of DGRI Administration Office supplies 11/27/2019 1.02              
9/12/2019 Staples Contract & Commercial Inc. Share of DGRI Administration Office supplies 08/16/2019 0.97              
8/13/2019 Fifth Third Bank P-Card 07/19 Share of DGRI Administration Office Supplies 0.95              
8/15/2019 Staples Contract & Commercial Inc. Share of DGRI Administration Office supplies 07/2019 0.91              
9/22/2019 Breck Graphics dba Allegra Share of DGRI Administration Business Cards: Kimberly Van Driel 08/2019 0.86              
7/22/2019 Staples Contract & Commercial Inc. Share of DGRI Administration Office supplies 07/03/2019 0.82              
10/1/2019 Gordon Water Systems Share of DGRI Administration Water Cooler Lease 08/2019 0.78              
8/28/2019 Fusion IT LLC Share of DGRI Administration IT network services 08/01/2019 0.76              

11/20/2019 Engineered Protection Systems Inc Share of DGRI Administration Office Security Access Card Keys 9/2019 0.73              
8/28/2019 Breck Graphics dba Allegra Share of DGRI Administration Business Cards: Melvin Eledge 08/2019 0.70              

10/29/2019 Breck Graphics dba Allegra Share of DGRI Administration Business Cards: K. Kitavi 10/2019 0.70              
8/20/2019 PeopleG2 Share of DGRI Administration Criminal Background Check services 07/2019 0.68              
9/12/2019 Comcast Share of DGRI Administration Internet at 29 Pearl St NW 09/07-10/06/19 0.66              

10/22/2019 Gordon Water Systems Share of DGRI Administration Water Cooler Lease 09/2019 0.66              
12/9/2019 Fifth Third Bank P-Card 11/19 Share of DGRI Administration Admin Postage 11/2019 0.64              
7/22/2019 Gordon Water Systems Share of DGRI Administration Water Cooler Lease 07/2019 0.64              

11/20/2019 Staples Contract & Commercial Inc. Share of DGRI Administration Office supplies 10/07/2019 0.63              
9/11/2019 Fifth Third Bank P-Card 08/19 Share of DGRI Administration Office Supplies 08/2019 0.57              
7/22/2019 Model Coverall Service Inc Share of DGRI Administration Floor Mat Rental 07/2019 0.55              
8/14/2019 Model Coverall Service Inc Share of DGRI Administration Floor Mat Rental 08/2019 0.55              
9/5/2019 Model Coverall Service Inc Share of DGRI Administration Floor Mat Rental 09/2019 0.55              

10/1/2019 Model Coverall Service Inc Share of DGRI Administration Floor Mat Rental 10/2019 0.55              
10/29/2019 Model Coverall Service Inc Share of DGRI Administration Floor Mat Rental 11/2019 0.55              
10/20/2019 Staples Contract & Commercial Inc. Share of DGRI Administration Office supplies 09/2019 0.54              
12/3/2019 Curtis Laundry & Dry Cleaners, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration DGRI Table Cloth Cleaning services 11/18/2019 0.52              

11/20/2019 PeopleG2 Share of DGRI Administration Criminal Background Check services 10/2019 0.46              
11/21/2019 Gordon Water Systems Share of DGRI Administration Water Cooler Lease 10/2019 0.44              

continued on the next page



STATEMENT C - continued
Monroe North Tax Increment Financing Authority
Schedule of Expenditures
July 1 Through December 31, 2019 Page 4

Date Activity #
Posted Vendor Purpose / Project Description Amount

continued from prior page
8/15/2019 Fusion IT LLC Share of DGRI Administration System & Network IT engineering 7/26/19 0.38$            

9/22/2019 Fusion IT LLC Share of DGRI Administration System & Network IT engineering 08/2019 0.38              

12/10/2019 Fusion IT LLC Share of DGRI Administration System & Network IT engineering 11/2019 0.38              

10/20/2019 Staples Contract & Commercial Inc. Share of DGRI Administration Office supplies 09/2019 0.36              

7/18/2019 Fifth Third Bank P-Card 06/19 Share of DGRI Administration Office Supplies 07/2019 0.35              

10/20/2019 Staples Contract & Commercial Inc. Share of DGRI Administration Office supplies 09/2019 0.32              

7/22/2019 Fusion IT LLC Share of DGRI Administration Network Management 07/01/2019 0.15              

8/12/2019 Fusion IT LLC Share of DGRI Administration Network Management 08/01/2019 0.15              
8/28/2019 Fusion IT LLC Share of DGRI Administration Network Management 08/01/2019 0.15              
10/1/2019 Fusion IT LLC Share of DGRI Administration Network Management 10/01/2019 0.15              

11/26/2019 Fusion IT LLC Share of DGRI Administration Network Management 12/01/2019 0.15              

12/29/2019 Fusion IT LLC Share of DGRI Administration Network Management 1/2020 0.15              

9/22/2019 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration HDMI Adapter 08/2019 0.14              
9/4/2019 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration IT Services 08/2019 0.12              

11/20/2019 Staples Contract & Commercial Inc. Share of DGRI Administration Office supplies 10/07/2019 0.07              
12/9/2019 Fifth Third Bank P-Card 11/19 Share of DGRI Administration Office Supplies 11/2019 0.04              
9/24/2019 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration Credit for returned parts (12.18)           

7/1/2019 THE KR GROUP 21581 Reversal Share of DGRI Administration Reversed accrual for svcs performed in FY2019 (12.86)           
7/1/2019 THE KR GROUP 21621 Reversal Share of DGRI Administration Reversed accrual for svcs performed in FY2019 (32.33)           
7/1/2019 FISHBECK Accrual 384358 Urban Recreation Plan FY2019 accrual reversal (7,707.86)      

JULY 1 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2019 EXPENDITURES 136,572.18$   



Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, 
Including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placement

 



Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

Disagreements with Management 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements  

Significant Findings or Issues  

Management Representations  

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 







Opinions



Other Matters

Required Supplemental Information

Other Information



Using This Financial Report

Condensed Statement of Net Position

Current Assets

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments



Noncurrent Assets

Capital Assets, Net

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Vouchers Payable, Accrued Interest Payable, and Noncurrent Liabilities, Due within One Year

Current Liabilities

Vouchers Payable and Accrued Interest Payable

Noncurrent Liabilities

Net Position

Net Investment in Capital Assets

Restricted Net Position for Authorized Projects



Condensed Statement of Activities

Revenue

Property Taxes

Other Revenue

Expenses

Urban Development

Interest and Paying Agent Fees



Overall Financial Position

Requests for Information







Accounting and Reporting Principles 

Basis of Accounting 

Budget

Specific Balances and Transactions 

Cash and Investments



Capital Assets

Long-term Obligations

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources



Net Position

Property Tax Revenue

Use of Estimates

Comparative Data





Debt Service Requirements to Maturity







Goal 1: 

Goal 2: 

Goal 3: 

Goal 4: 

Goal 5: 

Goal 1: Restore the Grand River as the Draw and Create a Connected and Equitable River Corridor

 

 

Goal 2: Establish a True Downtown Neighborhood That is Home to a Diverse Population



Goal 3: Implement a 21st Century Mobility Strategy

Goal 5: Reinvest in Public Space, Culture, and Inclusive Programming





MEMORANDUM 

 

 
MONROE 
NORTH 
TIFA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DATE: March 6, 2020 
 
TO: Monroe North TIFA 
 
FROM: Kim Van Driel, Director of Public Space Management 
 
SUBJECT: Request for Funding Authorization to Support the Womens Way Alley  

Activation Initiative  
 
In honor of Women’s History Month and the 100th year anniversary of the 19th Amendment, the Goal 5 Alliance 
has been working on an upcoming alley activation initiative that will name nameless Downtown alleyways after local 
women from our history that have made significant contributions to our community. 
 
By teaming up with the City of Grand Rapids, Greater Grand Rapids Women’s History Council, Lions & Rabbits 
and additional property owners, we will be able to activate underutilized spaces within the Downtown footprint in 
a unique and one of a kind way. 
 
The first intervention in each alley will be an original mural - created and painted by local artists that showcases 
specific local women leaders. The currently nameless alleyways also will be officially named and marked with 
commemorative street signage and biographical plaque in honor of the women leaders highlighted at each 
location. 
 
While additional creative details for each individual alleyway continue to come together, potential improvements 
will include movable furniture for seating, planters, lighting, and periodic pop-up event programming to further 
energize the space.  
 
This year, we will begin the initiative naming five Downtown alleyways that include the following: 
 

• Harriet Woods Hill mural in the alley off Louis St NW at the northwest corner of GRPD 
headquarters. Harriet was the first African American women officer at the GR Police Department. She 
started as a clerk typist in the records and identification bureau, worked in the Juvenile Division and 
eventually rose to become the first female detective in GRPD history. 

• Ethel Coe mural in the alley off Monroe Ave NW on the northside of 20 Monroe Live. Ethel was a 
community activist, renaissance woman, musician, actor and civil rights leader. She received the William 
Glen Trailblazer Award and worked with Family Life Council, Church Women United, National 
Association of Urban Leagues and St. Joseph Center. 

Agenda Item # 
March 11, 2020 
MNTIFA Meeting 



 
 

• Angeline Kelsey "Nakelsa" Yob mural in the alley off Sheldon Ave NE between the Grand Rapids 
Public Museum and The Apartment Lounge. Angeline was an educator and community activist. She 
was the great, great, great-granddaughter of Chief Mash KeAw She, who was one of the signatories of 
the Treaty of 1855, which ceded local Anishinabbe lands to the U.S. government. She worked three 
decades with Grand Rapids Public Schools in the Native American Education Program. 

• The GR Chicks 1945 All American Baseball Team mural in the alley of Newberry St. NW behind 
Auto Fixit Body Shop.The Grand Rapids Chicks were one of two new teams to be added to the 
League in 1945. The league started as a non-profit which solicited contributions to the League from 
businesses in the team cities. The former Milwaukee Chicks moved to Grand Rapids and half of the 
players from the 1944 team returned to Grand Rapids under this new management. 

• The fifth location will be in the Community Foundation alley of Oaks and Weston. The women 
being honored is still yet to be determined through our partnership with the Community Foundation 
and the Latino Community Coalition. 
 

In an effort to activate the GR Chicks 1945 All American Baseball Team alley, we are seeking support to help 
fund public ream improvements within the alley. This will include a mural of the team painted by local artist Michi 
Farias and the concrete pavement of the current gravel alleyway north of Newberry street to Mason street 
covering the 10ft by 440ft length of the alley sometime this spring. 
 

   
  

 
 
Recommendation: Authorize the expenditure not to exceed $80,000 out of the FY20 budget to 
support funding of the Womens Way project honoring the GR Chicks 1945 All American 
Baseball Team. 



MEMORANDUM 

 

 
MONROE 
NORTH 
TIFA 
 
 
 
DATE: March 6, 2020 
 
TO: Monroe North TIFA 
 
FROM: Mark Miller, Managing Director of Planning + Design 
 
SUBJECT: Request for Funding Authorization to Procure & Install Furnishings at Canal Street Park 
 
GR Forward Goal 1 seeks to Restore the River as the Draw & Create a Connected and Equitable River Corridor. 
Specifically, the Plan recommends renovating and updating Canal Street Park to blend with the river corridor park 
system (page 88).  Building upon GR Forward’s Goal 1 recommendations, the City of Grand Rapids River For All 
Master Plan (2018) established design guidelines for river trail and park furnishings, including benches, litter cans, 
and lighting.  These guidelines support a unified theme for the river trail network and river park sites.  GR Forward 
and the River For All Plan were both significantly informed through substantial public involvement that shaped a 
clear mandate for many of the elements that make up the places and connections along the Grand River.  
 
With these publicly supported goals in mind, Downtown Grand Rapids Inc. (DGRI) and the City of Grand Rapids 
Parks Department have collaborated with Viridis Design Group to inventory existing park furnishings and 
recommend a series of new furnishings for Canal Street Park.  This initiative seeks to update the existing furnishings 
to match the recommendations of the River for All Guidelines and add additional furnishings to make the park 
more inviting to a diverse community. 
 
Existing Updates 
This initiative plans to remove twelve (12) existing benches, four (4) existing bike racks, and five (5) existing litter 
receptacles and replace them with the following furnishings that match the River For All Guidelines: 
 Six (6) Landscape Forms Poe litter receptacles 
 Ten (10) FGP Benches (while 12 benches are being removed and 10 added, total seating will still be increased 

per the additional furnishings in the next section).  
 Four (4) bike racks  

 
Total amount to purchase these items is estimated at $40,000. In addition, outreach with Monroe North neighbors 
and business will be conducted with opportunities to add further enhancements. The additional funding requested 
at this time is to allow flexibility in determining what those enhancements are and to complete their installation.  
 
Last, these improvements are a part of a larger improvement strategy that will be deployed in collaboration with 
area neighbors and the City Parks Department. Future phases will examine additional implementation 
opportunities from the River For All Design Guidelines, and will also look to enhance the existing playground and 
restroom facilities.  
 
Recommendation: Authorize funding in an amount not to exceed $120,000 to complete 
improvements at Canal Street Park.  

Agenda Item #06 
March 11, 2020 
MNTIFA Meeting 


